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Yell Limited

Report of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2012

The directors present therr Annual Report and the audited financial statements of Yell Ltd (the "Company”) for
the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal activities

The Company’s principal activihes during the year were the provision of classified directory advertising in the
United Kingdom through printed, cnline and phone-based media In addition, fellowing the reorganisation of the
Yell Group from a federation of national companies into one global ocrganisation, the deciston was taken that Yell
Limited will became the global principal company for the group's new range of digital products and services that
are being developed The Company 1s an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of hibu plc (formerly Yell Group plc),
(the “hibu Group”, the “Group”)

Review of business and future developments

The economic enviroment has remained difficult throughout the year with SME confidence consistently
remaining low At the same time the revenue shift from directories to other didigital services has been more
pronounced as consumers and small businesses adapt ther approach to advertising These factors have
negatively affected both print and digital directory revenue

Revenue from Digital services grew by 130% while revenue from digital directories was 9 9% lower and average
annualised digital media revenue per advertiser was up 4 3% Revenue from print and other directory services
declined 26 4% due to a continued decrease In the rate of customer retention and the 13 4% decrease in print
revenue per unique advertiser

The Company made a loss before tax due to the gocodwill impairment write off of £218m and the directories in
development write off of £37 8m

The principal nsks and uncertainties that may affect the Company's long term value or prospects, including
significant relationships with stakeholders, are given below

Financal sk management

The Company’'s operations expose It to a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in debt
market prices, credit nsk, iquidity nsk and interest rate risk  The Company has in place a nsk management
programme that seeks to hmit the adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company by monitoring
levels of debt finance and the related finance costs

In order to ensure stability of cash out flows and hence manage interest rate risk, the Company has a policy of
mamntaining a certain level of debt at fixed rate Further to this the Company seeks to minimise the nsk of
uncertain funding in its operations by borrowing within a spread of maturity periods

Given the size of the Company, the directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial nsk
management to a sub-committee of the board The policies set by the board of directors are implemented by
the Company's finance department The department has a policy and procedures manual that sets out specific
gudelines to manage interest rate rsk, credit nsk and circumstances where it would be appropriate to use
financial instruments to manage these




Yell Limited

Report of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2012(continued)
Review of business and future developments (continued)
Price risk

Increased paper prices could have a matenal adverse effect on our business Paper 1s our single largest raw
material expense In the 2012 financial year, paper costs were equivalent to 3 6% (2011 3 4%) of Company
revenue and represented 4% (2011 5 3%) of costs of sales We try to limit our exposure to market fluctuations
through contracts and pricing arrangements with our supplters  Our current arrangements expire in March 2013
It 15 always possible, however, that we will not be able to renew these arrangements on satisfactory terms, if at
all Failure to agree satisfactory terms or faillure of any of our major supplers to deliver, could force us to buy
some or all of our paper in the spot market, at potentially higher prices, until new arrangements are put tn place

Credit risk

The Company could be adversely affected by the reliance on, and extension of credit to, small and medium-
sized businesses A significant part of our revenue comes from selling advertising to small and medium-sized
businesses These types of businesses tend to have few financial resources and it 1Is normal and necessary
business practice for us to offer credit terms to many of them However, failure rates for small and medium-
sized businesses tend to be higher than for large businesses, a factor that could have a ignificant impact on bad
debt levels and on the number of advertisers renewing their advertising each year Full collection of overdue
accounts can take longer than for larger businesses

Liqurdity nisk

The Company actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance that 1s designed to ensure
the Company has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions

Interest rate cash flow risk

The Company has both interest bearing assets and interest bearing liabilities  Interest bearing assets include
only cash balances, all of which earn interest at vanable rate The Company has a policy of maintaining a
percentage of debt at fixed rates to ensure certainty of future interest cash flows The directors will revisit the
appropriateness of this policy should the Company's operations change in size or nature

Results and dividends

The Company's result for the financial year to 31 March 2012 was a loss of £178,094,000 (2011 profit
£41,260,000)

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2011 £nil)
Directors and their interests

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements are

stated on page 1 None of the directors were remunerated for their services as directors of the Company (2011
none)

Article 224 1 of the Articles of Association of hibu plc (fermerly Yell Group plc), the ultimate holding company,
permit fubu plc, subject to the Companies Act 2006 and other applicable legislation, to indemnify any of the
directors agamnst any loss or abiity in connection with any proven or aileged negligence, default, breach of duty
or trust by him, in relation to Yell Group plc or any of its subsidianes In November 2009 hibu plc (formerly the
Yell Group plc) entered deeds of indemnity in favour of its current and former executive and non-executive
directors and officers of hibu plc, its subsidiaries any other companies to which hibu pic or any of its subsidiaries
has nominated or appointed any such person as a director or officer The deeds of indemnity, which remain n
force, are qualifying third party indemnities for the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act 2006

3



Yell Limited

Report of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2012(continued)
Related party transactions

Details are provided in note 24 to the financial statements
Employees

The hibu Group Inclusive of the Company has a Recruitment and Selection Policy that states that we are
committed to the employment of people with disabiities Moreover, we guarantee an interview to people with
disabilittes who meet the minimum selection c¢ritena for any vacancy The Company is registered as a Two Tick
employer as it satisfies the UK government’s criteria on the employment of people with disabilities

Our Equal Opportunities Policy contains a code of good practice on disability which states that an individual who
becomes disabled whilst 1in employment will receive support to ensure, wherever possible, they are able to
continue In therr role This will involve whatever reasonable adjustments can be made on consultation with the
individual

Alternatively, again in consultation with the individual, other positions will be considered where the individual’s
skills and abilittes match the requirements of the role, again, making reasonable adjustments where appropnate

We will ensure that training and career development 1s equally availlable to people with disabilities, tallored where
practicable for their specific needs An extenswve range of communication and consultative arrangements are
instigated by the Company such as the intranet, vanous printed publications and live briefings These help to
ensure that employees are kept fully informed about developments in the Group, including the Group's financial
performance

Policy and practice on payment of current liabilities

The hibu Group's policy Is to use its purchasing power fairly and to pay promptly and as agreed The Company
has a vanety of payment terms with supplers The term for payments for purchases under major contracts are
settled when agreeing the other terms negotiated with the individual suppliers

It 1s the Company’s policy to make payments for other purchases within 30 working days of the invoice date,
provided that the relevant invoice 1$ presented to the Company in a timely fashion and 1s complete The
Company's payment terms are printed on the Company’s standard purchase order forms or, where appropriate,
specified in the individual contracts agreed with suppliers

At 31 March 2012, trade payables represented 24 days {2011 29 days) of purchases
Cash and debt

The Company 1s within a group of companies {the "securty group") that are party to debt arrangements
assoclated with bank facilities These bank facilities contain covenants over net cash interest cover and debt
cover These covenants are tested quarterly on a rolling twelve month basis The majonty of hibu's debt matures
in April 2014 The Group therefore intends to consult with its lenders and shareholders over the coming months
in order to put in place a new capital structure within the 2013 financial year

The nsks associated with successfully addressing this issue and with operating within the Group's covenants are
discussed in note 1 to the financial statements The Board concluded that adoption of the going concern basis In
prepaning the financiai statements is appropnate However, as a consequence of increasing difficult trading
conditions and a greater proportion of future income expected to come froam as yet unproven new strategies,
there 1s a higher nsk in the current year than in the previous year that the Group would not be able to meet its
financial covenants with its lenders

The Group 15 In full comphance with the financial covenants and undertakings contained in all its borrowing
agreements the Group 1s also cash generative and profitable(before exceptional items) In the future if the
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Report of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2012{continued)
Cash and debt (continued)

Group were not able to meet its financial covenants with, or obtain a wawver from, its lenders such that
undertakings to the Group’s lenders were breached, the lenders’ facility agent may, and must if directed by two-
thirds of lenders (by reference to debt held) demand immediate repayment of all amounts due to them Whilst
this eventually would, if it arose, cast doubt on the future capital funding of the Group, the group's cash flow
forecasts show that in the twelve months ending 31 march 2013 interest payments will be fully met, with further
cash generated to repay debt The directors believe that adopting the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements 1s appropriate Nevertheless, the directors are making full disclosure, as required by
accounting standards, to indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty, which may casy significant doubt about
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern

Post balance sheet events
See note 28 to the financial statements
Charitable and political donations

During the financial year under review the Company made charitable donations amounting to £102,736 (2011
£529,609), which support varous community refated chanties and projects No political donations were made
dunng the year

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied they give a true and farr view of the state of affars of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period

in prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
. state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the

European Union have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements,

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transacttons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
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Report of the directors for the year ended 31 March 2012(continued)
Charitable and political donations (continued)
Statement of disclosure to auditors

As at the date of signing their report, so far as each director was aware, there i1s no relevant audit information (as
defined by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Group's auditors are unaware The directors
have taken necessary steps to make themselves aware of relevant audit information and to establish that the
auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

1l

Chnstian Wells

Company Secretary Date 28 September 2012
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Yell Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Yell Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise the
Income statement, the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of cash flows, the Statement of
financial position, the Statement of changes in equity, and the related notes. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and international Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 5, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our
respensibility I1s to audit the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibilily for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
1s shown or mto whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent i writing

Scopa of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvelves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information n the Annual Report to identfy matenal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements ¥ we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implicatiens for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

* give a true and farr view of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 March 2012 and of its profit and cash
fiows for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
* have heen prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 200
Emphasis of matter - Going concern

In forming our opinten on the financial statements, which 1s not modified, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosures made in note 1 to the financial statements concerning the ability of the Company to continue as a
going concern There 1s a nsk that the Group may breach the financial covenants with its lenders. The syndicate
of lenders have secunty over the Company's shares. This secunty creates doubt about the future capital funding
and therefore trading strategy of the Company These conditions, along with the other matters explained in note
1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the Company's ability to confinue as a going concern The Financial statements do not include the
adjustments that would result If the company was unable to continue as a going concern
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Separate opinion in relation to IFRSa as issued by the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the Company financial statements, the Company n addition to complying with its legal
abhgation to apply IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

In our opiruon the Company financial statements comply with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB
Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companias Act 2006

In our opinion the nformatiton given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, In our cpinion’

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

. the financtal statements are not tin agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.

2 e Condoc

Pauline Campbell (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbridge

28 September 2012




Yell Limited

Income statement for the year ended 31 March 2012

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Note £'000 £'000

Revenue 2 440,914 516,209

Cost of sales (191,345) (201,585)
Gross profit 249,569 314,624

Distribution costs (8,890) (11,312)

Administrative expenses (404,157) {164,320)
Operating profit (163,478) 138,992
Finance income 4 24,766 18,032

Finance costs 4 (43,628) (99,036)

Net finance costs {18,862) (81,004)
(Loss) / profit before taxation (182,340) 57,988

Taxation 5 4,246 (16,728)
(Loss) ! profit for the financial year {178,094) 41,260




Yell Limited

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
{Loss) / profit for the financial year {178,094) 41,260
Gain n fair value of financial instruments used as hedges 4,346 25,506
Actuarial (loss) / gain on defined benefit pension schemes (47,813) 55,311
Tax effect of net gains / (losses) not recognised In income
statement 12,280 (22,572)
Comprehensive (loss) / income not recognised in the income
statement {31,187) 58,245
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (209,281) 99 505

10




Yell Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2012

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities*
Cash generated from operations 127,534 157,173
External interest paid (5,061) {34,826)
External interest recewed 908 1,108
Interest received from group undertakings 10,380 2,813
Interest paid to group undertakings (7,555) (2,829)
Corporation tax recewed /(paid) 11 (4,900)
Negative goodwill mmediately recognised 1,161 -
Net cash inflows from operating activities 127,378 118,539
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment {(20,912) {36,030)
Loans from group companies (29,869) 258,110
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking - {1,168)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities {50,781) 220,912
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of borrowings {18,922) (4,730)
Net movement in hedges - (39,258)
Net loans to other group undertakings (142,676) (284,925)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (161,598) (328,913)
Net cash increase In cash and cash
equivalents (85,001) 10,538
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmng of year 143,673 133,135
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 58,672 143,673

11




Yell Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2012

Cash generated from operation

(Loss) Profit for the financial year (178,094) 41,260
Adjustments for:

Taxation (4,246) 16,728
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 8,404 10,195
Loss on disposal 808 324
Amortisation of software costs 12,950 10,816
Foreigh exchange through income statement 25 (16}
External finance cost 1,697 37,510
Finance costs due to group undertakings 36,348 53,161
Finance income due from group undertakings {(19,416) (16,924)
Finance fees amortised - 8,365
External finance income (818) {1,103)
Group Recharges 4,889 -
Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles 267,028 -
Changes in working capital:

Directories in development 7,668 10,333
Trade & other receivables 94,513 15,670
Trade & other payables (84,815) (7,136)
Defined benefit pension charge / contnbutions (13,564) {21,202)
Other non cash items (5,843) (808)
Cash generated from operations 127,534 157,173

12



Yell Limited

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 7 791,164 1,009,191
Other intangsble assets 8 32,796 26,774
Investments in subsidianes 10 1,219 1,219
Retirement benefit surplus 23 9,400 37,307
Property, plant and equipment 9 15,376 23,122
Deferred tax assets 14 8,545 9,361
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 18 - 1,037
Trade & other receivables 13 3,119 6,630
Total non-current assets 861,619 1,114,641
Current assets
Inventories 4865 -
Directories in development 12 - 45,895
Trade and other receivables 13 651,888 709,358
Current tax assets 27,831 477
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 18 8 630
Cash and cash equivalents 58,780 143,763
Total current assets 738,972 900,123
Current liabilities
Financial habilities - toans and other borrowings 16 - (794,018}
Trade and other payables 19 (484,296) (691,621)
Total current liabilities {484,296) {1,485,639)
Net current assets / (liabilities) 254,676 (585,516)
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax habilities 14 (2,257) (13,385)
Trade and other payables 19 (814,443) (6,864)
Total non-current liabilities {816,700) {20,249)
Net assets 299,595 508,876

13



Yell Limited

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £'000 £000
Equity
Share premium account 20 325,971 325,971
Other reserves 21 (97,968) (66,781}
Retained earnings 71,592 249,686
Total equity 299,595 508,876

The financial statements on pages 9 to 65 were approved by the Board of directors on 28 September 2012 and

were signed on its behalf by

Richard Hanscott
Director

Registration no 04205228

14
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2012

Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 325,971 (125,026) 208,428 409,371
Comprehensive loss not recoegnised in the income statement - 58,245 - 58,245
Profit for the financial year - - 41,260 41,260
Total comprehensive income for 2011 - 58,245 41,260 99,505
Balance at 31 March 2011 325,971 (66,781) 249 686 508,876
Balance at 1 Apnl 2011 325,971 (66,781) 249,686 508,876
Comprehensive Income not recogruised in the income
statement - (31,187) - (31,187)
Loss for the financial year - - (178,094) (178,094}
Total comprehensive loss for 2012 - {31,187) {178,094) {209,281)
Balance at 31 March 2012 325,971 {97,968) 71,592 299,595

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements

15
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1. Basis of preparation, accounting policies and cnitical accounting estimates and judgements
Entity information

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation
of financial instruments (Including denvative instruments) at far value in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS’s) as adopted by the European Union, and the Companies Act 2006 Accordingly
these financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Resolution

The financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking, and not as a
group The Company I1s exempt by virtue of s400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare
and deliver consolidated group accounts

In concluding on the going concern status of the Company, the directors have received confirmation from the
parent company, hibu plc, that it will provide the necessary support as required to enable the Company to meet
its debts as and when they fall due for a penod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of these
financial statements The Group 1s currently in full comphance with the financial covenants contained in all its
borrowing agreements Detalls of its covenants and management of the nsks associated with meeting those
covenants are set out In the nsk management disclosures in the 2012 Yell Group plc Annual Report

A summary of the principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, s set out below

The Company 1s a subsidiary of hibu plc, (formerly Yell Group plc) held indirectly through other holding
companies The audit reports to shareholders for the year ending 31 March 2012 for Yell Group plc and its
immediate holding companies contain an emphasts of matter paragraph which refers to the disclosures in the
respective annual reports and accounts of a matenal uncertainty as set out in the following excerpt from the
financial statements of Yell Group plc

“The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Group 15 in full comphance with the
financial covenants and undertakings contained n all its borrowing agreements The Group 1s also cash
generative and profitable (before exceptional items) The financial covenants are explained in note 16 The nsks
and uncertainties associated with the debt covenants are discussed below, In note 16 and in the section ‘Primary
nsks’ beginmng on page 22 These nsks include strategic risks, as well as debt and refinancing risks

The Board, in considering going concern, fooked at various facters including Yell's abiity to meet debt
repayments and satisfy debt covenants The Group has some ability to reduce the risk of any potential covenant
breach by reducing costs The majority of the Yell's debt alsc matures in April 2014 The Group therefore intends
to consult with its lenders and shareholders 1n order to put in place an appropriate new capital structure within
the 2013 financial year

The Board concluded that adoption of the going concern basis In preparing these financial statements 1s
appropriate However, as a consequence of increasingly difficult trading conditions and a greater proportion of
future income expected to come from as yet unproven new strategies, there 1s a higher nisk tn the current year
than in the previous year that the Group would not be able to meet its financial covenants with its lenders Under
certain circumstances, considered by the Board, the Group will not be able to meet its financial covenants

In the event that covenants are breached without remedy or waiver, the lenders’ faciity agent may, and must
directed by two-thirds of lenders (by reference to debt held) demand immediate repayment of all amounts due to
thern Whist this eventuahty would, if it arose, cast doubt on the future capital funding of the Group, the Group’s
cash flow forecasts show that in the twelve months ending 31 March 2013 interest payments will be fully met,
with further cash generated to repay debt The Board considers that such action by the lenders 1s either unlikely
or will be unnecessary once an appropriate capital structure has been determined, but acknowledges that this I1s

16
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1 Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
{continued)

Entity information (continued)
a matenal uncertainty

The directors believe that adopting the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financtal statements 1s
appropriate Nevertheless, the directors are making full disclosure, as requrred by accounting standards, to
indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the
Group were unable to continue as a going concern ”

Since the approval of the 31 March 2012 group financial statements the group has announced that a a number
of capital structure options are being considered and while no decision has yet been made, certain options may
result in a dilution of existing Yell Group plc shareholders’ interests, including some options, which may attribute
Iittle or no value to the Group's ordinary shares The Group also announced that a waiver had been obtained
from its lenders to amend the basis on which the Group's leverage ratio 1s next tested as a prudent measure to
avoid a possible breach of the leverage covenant as at 30 September 2012 Instead of testing the leverage ratio
by reference to the 12 months to 30 September 2012, the leverage ratio would be tested by reference to the 12
month period t¢ 30 November 2012 applying the same ratio as 1s currently applicable for the period to 30
September 2012

The directors have considered the implications of these circumstances and these disclosures on the financial
statements of the Company, and in particular whether 1t 1s appropnate to prepare the financial statements on a
gotng concern basis and whether there 1s a matenial uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern

In reaching a conclusion the directors recognised that the syndicate of lenders have secunty over the
company's shares A change in ownership, which would occur If the lenders exericse this secunty, may
matenally change the Company's trading strategy The directors considers that such action by the lenders 1s
either unhkely or will be unnecessary once approprate capital structure has been determined by the Group but
acknowledges that this 1s a material uncertainty The directors believe that adopting the going concern basis in
prepanng the consolidated financial statements 1s appropriate Nevertheless, the directors are making full
disclosure, as required by accounting standards, to indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty, which may
cast significant doubt about the Company’ ability to continue as a going concern

The principle accounting policies applied in preparation of these financial statements are set out below These
policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated

Accounting policies
a. Revenue

Revenue, after deduction of sales allowances and value added tax comprises the value of products provided by
the Company Revenue from classified directories, and other directones, mainly comprising advertising revenue,
1s recognised In the income statement upon completetion of delivery to the users of the directories Other
revenue, principally from internet and voice production, 1s recognised from the point at which service s first
provided over the life of the contract

17
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1. Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
{continued)

b. Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises the costs incurred in developing directories and other products Prowvisions for
impairment of trade receivables are also included within cost of sales

c. Advertising
The Company expenses the costs of advertising its own products and services as the costs incurred
d. Finance costs and income

Finance costs payable are charged as incurred using the effective interest rate basis Finance income Is
recognised on an accruals basis

e. Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and habilittes denominated in foreign currency are translated into sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the financial position Trading transactions denominated in foreign currency are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling when the transactions were entered into Exchange
differences are included in the iIncome statement in the period they anse or directly to equity depending upon the
nature of the transaction

f.Goodwill

Goodwill from a business combination 1s included in intangible assets and i1s tested annually for imparment
Goodwill 1s not amortised, but carried at cost less accumulated impairment

g. Other non-current intangible assets

On the acquisition of a business, fair values are attnbuted to the assets and liabilihes acquired These net assets
may Include software development costs, brand names, non-compete agreements, coniracts, customer
commitments and customer relationships, all of which are recorded as intangible assets and held at cost less
accumulated amortisation

Software, including internally developed software, 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful economic
life, which does not generally exceed four years Brand names are amortised on a straight line basis over theerr
useful economic lives which do not exceed 40 years Non-compete agreements are amortised on a straight line
basis over the term of the agreement Contracts are amortised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the
contract Customer commitments are amortised as the directonies to which the commitments relate are
published Customer relationships are amortised on a basis that takes into account the estimated customer
retention rate at the date of acquisition The useful economic lives of customer relationships do not generally
exceed eight years The amortisation period and method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date

Internally developed software, that 1s capitalised, includes the software development employee costs and an
appropnate portion of overheads
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1. Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

h. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at histonical cost less depreciation Cost comprises the purchase price
and any other costs of bringing an asset into use Depreciation i1s provided on property, plant and equipment on
a straight-line basis from the time they are available for use, so as to write off therr costs over therr estmated
useful economic ives taking into account any expected residual values

Reviews are made annually of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of individual productive assets
and adjusted prospectively, if appropnate, taking account of commercial and technological obsolescence as well
as normal wear and tear

The estimated lives assigned tc property, plant and equipment are

Years
Leasehold improvements 5 years or life of lease If less than § years
Office equipment 2t06

i. Asset impairment

Assets with indefinte useful lives are not subject to amortisation and instead are tested for impairment on an
annual basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carring amount may not be
recoverable Assets subject to amortisation are tested for iImpairment when an event that might affect asset
values has occurred An mpairment loss I1s recognised to the extent that the carmpng amount cannot be
recovered either by selling the asset or by the discounted future earnings from operating the assets

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units, or CGUs) Where assets do not generate independant cash flows
and therr carrying value cannot be attributed to a particular CGU, CGUs are grouped together at the level at
which these assets reside, and the carrying value of this group of CGUs 1s compared with the recoverable
amount of that particular group The recoverable amount i1s the higher of an asset's far value less cost to sell
and value In use

if an impairment loss 1s recognised for a CGU, it 1s allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets of the
assets of the unit in the following order

1) First, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and

) Then, to the other assets of the CGU pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CcGu

If an asset's fair value less costs to sell exceeds its carrying amount before the imparrment test of a CGU, then
none of the impairment loss arsing on the impairment test 1s allocated to that asset
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1 Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

j-Investments
Investments are valued at cost less any amounts written off due to impairment

Any imparrment would be charged to the income statement account to the extent that it 1s not covered by
amounts previously credited to shareholders' equity through the revaluation surplus

k. Leased assets

Rentals in respect of operating leases, under which substantally all the benefits and risks of ownership remain
with the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the Iife of the lease

I. Directories in development

The cost of directories 1n development were previously recognised as a current intangible asset where the costs
directly attributable to the development of the directory can be measured reliably When directonies are launched
on a non-paid basis the costs are expensed as incurred The development costs mainly comprise the direct
costs of certain personnel dedicated to developing adverts and creating the content of directories and artwork
and other directory production and development costs, including appropriate directly attributable overheads The
asset was amortised to cost of sales on completion of delivery of the relevant advertising

Until 31 March 2012, Yell capitalised the costs of directories in development The transformation to the digital
model means Yell can no longer reliably estimate the allocation of costs between printed and online directories
for which an intangible asset was previously recognised and other streams for which no intangible asset can be
recognised Therefore 1AS 38 requires these costs to be expensed when incurred The £37 8m exceptional
charge has been expensed in 2012 financial year along with current year costs of £8 2m

m. Trade and other receivables

Trade recewables are recognised imtially at far value A provision for imparment « trade recewables 1s
established when there 1s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect amounts due according
to the onginal terms of recewvables The provision Is calulated by estimating future cash flows from trade
receivables on the basis of historical loss experience

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in hand, bank deposits repayable on demand, and other short-term
highly hquid readily convertible into cash investments with onginal maturities of three months or less

o. Borrowings

Al borrowings are ntially stated at far value of consideration received after deduction of issue costs
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost lssue costs are charged to the income statement
together with a coupon, as finance costs, on a constant-yield basis over the term of the borrowings, or over a
shorter period where the lender can require earlier repayment
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1 Bass of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

p. Deferred finance costs/unamortised debt issue costs

Debt 1ssue costs are intially capitalised and are then charged to the income statement over the term of the
borrowings or over a shorter period where the lender can require earlier payment

q. Employee benefits

The Company expenses employee benefits as employees render the services that give nise to the benefits In
accordance with IAS 19, Employee Benefits

The Company operated a defined benefit pension scheme for its employees employed before 1 October 2001
{sections 1, 2 and 3 of the 'UKPF'), and operates defined benefit schemes for its employees employed
subsequent to 1 October 2001 Yell closed its defined benefit scheme to future accrual on 31 March 2011, thus
reducing Yell's exposure to future changes in salaries and employee service years Employees employed before
1 October 2001 became members of a defined contribution scheme from 1 Apnl 2011

All pension schemes are independent of the Company's finances Actuarial valuations of the defined benefit
scheme are carned out as determined by the trustees at intervals of not more than three years, the rates of
contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on the advice of the actuanes, having regard to the
results of these valuations In any intervening years, the actuaries review the continuing appropnateness of the
contnbution rates The Apnl 2011 full actuarial valuation 1s stll ongoing at the date of these financial statements

The balance sheet inciudes the surplus or deficit in the defined benefit scheme taking assets at their year-end
market values and liabilities at their actuanally calculated values discounted at the year-end AA corporate bond
interest rates The cost of benefits accruing durning the year in respect of current and past service 1s charged
aganst operating profit The expected return on the schemes’ assets and the increase n the present value of
the schemes'’ liabilities ansing from the passage of time are included in other finance costs or income Actuanal
gains and losses on pension schemes are recognised immediately in the statement of recognised income and
expense

Payments te the Company’s defined contribution schemes are charged against profit as incurred
r.Employee share schemes

The farr value of employee share-based payments 1s calculated using the Black-Scholes model In accordance
with IFRS 2, Share-based Payments, the resulting cost 1s charged against income over the vesting period of the
awards The value of the charge 1s adjusted to reflect expected and actual levels of options vesting

s. Taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the profit for the period and takes into account deferred taxation where
transactions or events give rise 1o temporary differences between the treatment of certain tems for taxation and
for accounting purposes Provision 1s made in full for deferred tax habiities Deferred tax assets are recogrised
to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the benefit can be
realised

Current tax 1s provided at the amounts expected to be paid or recovered under the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date Deferred tax 1s measured at the
rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse, based
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

1 Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

s Taxation (continued)

on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position
date Deferred tax assets and habihties are not discounted No provision 1s made for temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidianes since realisation of such differences can be controlled and 1s not probable
in the foreseeable future

t. Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at farr value on the date a derivative contract i1s entered
into and the farr value I1s subsequently remeasured at the year end The method of recognising the resulting gain
or loss depends on whether a denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument and, iIf so, the nature of the item
being hedged The Company designates certain derivatives as either

. Hedges of the farr value of recognised assets or iabilities or a firm commitment (fairr value hedges)
. Hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges)

The Company has not designated any derivatives as farr value hedges Changes In the farr value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as a cash flow hedge 1s recogrised in equity The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately in the income statement Amounts accumulated in equity are
recycled to the income statement in the period when the hedged item affects income (for instance, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged takes place)

The Company does not hold or 1ssue derivative financial tnstruments fer speculative purposes Changes in the
fair value of dervative instruments or elements of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
would be recognised immediately in the income statement

u Dividends

Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid Final dividends are recognised when they are approved by
shareholders

v Contingent Liabilities

Through the normal course of business, the Company 1s involved in legal disputes, the settlement of which may
involve cost to the Company These costs are accrued when payment 1s probable and associated costs can be
reliably estimated

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In general, our accounting policies under IFRSs as adopted by the European Union are consistent with those
generally adopted by others operating within the same industry in the UK

In preparing the Company financial statements, our management has made its best estimates and judgements
of certain amounts included in the financial statements, giving due consideration to materiaity We regularly
review these estimates and update them when required Actual resulls could differ from these estimates
Unless otherwise indicated, we do not beleve there 1s a great likelihood that materially different amounts would
be reported related to the accounting policies described below We consider the following to be a description of
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1 Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
{continued)

Cntical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)
the most significant estimates, which reguire our management to make subjective and complex judgements, or
matters that are inherently uncertain

Bad debts

The Company reduces receivables by an allowance for amounts that may become uncollectible in the future
Yell determines the allowance by estimating the future cashflows from the receivables based on historical loss
expenence A recewvable 1s written off against the provision when its believed to be entirely uncollectible Any
monies recovered subsequent to write off are recorded as adjustments to the bad debt provisionand considered
in the historical loss experience

Carrying value of goodwill

Yell reviews goodwill annually for impairment or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable and at the end of the first full year following acquisition Yell compares
the carrving value of our operations 18 compared with estimated recoverable values to determine whether
goodwill 1s imparred Yell estimates the recoverable value 1s estimated from a discounted cash flow model that
relies on significant key assumptions, including after-tax cash flows forecasted over an extended period of years,
terminal growth rates and discount rates

During the year the Company recognised impairment losses of £218m (£214 6m net of tax) There was no
impairment of goodwill in 2011 The cashflows in in the 2012 calculation are lower than what Yell believes can be
achieved under the new strategy Yell expects that over the medium term the Company EBITDA and cashflows
will return to growth as a result of substantial strategic changes in the business However these changes include
the development of matenal new income streams from consumer and SME products that were not established
at 31 March 2012, and therefore are not allowed under IFRS to be considered in the value-in-use assumptions
used to value the operations At 31 March the far values of the operations equalled therr carrying values and
consequently, any adverse change In a key assumption with all other assumptions held unchanged would cause
recognition of furhter impairment losses

Carrying value of long-lived tangible and intangible assets

Other non-intangible assets and plant and equipment are long hived assets that Yell amortises or depreciates
over ther useful lives Useful lives are based on managments estimates of the period over which the assets will
generate benefits Yell reviews the values of property, plant, equipment and assets with indefinate lives annually
for impairment Yelil reviews other non-current iIntangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that therr carrying amount may not be recoverable, and at the end of the first full year
following acquisition Historically, Yell has not realised large gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment

Durning the year ended 31 March 2012, Yell reported impairment losses if £218m (£214 6m net of tax) There
was no impairment of other intangible assets in 2011 The cashflows 1n in the 2012 calculation are lower than
what Yell believes can be achieved under the new strategy Yell expects that over the medium term the
Company EBITDA and cashflows will return to growth as a result of substantial strtegic changes In the business
However these changes include the development of matenal new income streams from consumer and SME
products that were not established at 31 March 2012, and therefore are not allowed under IFRS to be
considered in the value-in-use assumptions used to value the operations At 31 March the farr values of the
operations equalled therr carrying values and consequently, any adverse change in a key assumption with all
other assumptions held unchanged would cause recognition of furhter impairment losses
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1. Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
{continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Pension liabilities

Yell closed its defined benefit scheme in the UK to future accrual on 31 March 2011, thus reducing Yell's
exposure to future changes n salaries and employee service years The determination of our obligation and
expense for pensions 1s dependent on the selection of assumptions that are used by our actuaries In calculating
such amounts These assumptions include, amongst others, expected mortalty rates of scheme members, the
rate at which future pension payments are discounted to the balance sheet date, and inflation Differences In
Yelis actual experience or changes in its assumptions can materally affect the amount of our future pension
oblgations, future valuation adjustments in the statement of comprehensive income Yell seeks expert actuanal
advice In sething Its assumptions

Yell defined contribution schemes are managed separately from assets and habiities of the Group
Pension assets

Yell values the portfolio of assets held by the UK defined benefit pension scheme in the UK at market value
when calculating our net pension deficit Values will increase and decrease as markets rise and fall The trustees
and management have an agreed strategy to mitigate the risk of having insufficient funds, f markets fall The
trustees annually match the low nsk asset portfolio against the projected cash inflows for the next 12 years
Against longer-term projected cash payouts they match a combination of investments in index-linked gilts to
mitigate inflation nsk, and higher nsk assets to get higher rates of growth The trustees are working with
management as part of a trennial valuaton process to ensure sufficient assets will be available to settle
obligations extending beyond 12 years

Taxation
The determination of our obligation and expense for taxes requires an interpretation of tax law

Yell recognises deferred tax assets and habihties ansing from timing differences where we have a taxable benefit
or obligation in the future as a result of past events

We record deferred tax assets to the extent that we believe they are more likely than not to be realised Should
we determine in the future that we would be able to realise deferred tax assets 1n excess of our recorded amount
or that our liabilities are different than the amounts we recorded, then we would increase or decrease income as
appropnate In the period such determination was made At 31 March 2012 we believe we have recognised all
our potential deferred tax assets

Yell seeks appropriate, competent and professional tax advice before making any judgements on tax matters
Whilst Yell beleives that its judgements are prudent and appropriate, significant differences in actual experience
may matenally affect future tax charges

Standards that have been adopted during the current period

The following standards, interpretations and amendments became effective and were not matenal to the
Company Amendment to IASs 24, IFRS 1 and IFRICs14 and 19, and Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010
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1. Basis of preparation, accounting policies and critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued}

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2012 or later periods but which the Company has
chosen not to early adopt The new standard that could be relevant to the Company's operations 15 IFRS 9,
financial instruments This 1s the first part of a new standard on classification and measurement of financial
assets that will replace 1AS 39 Its 1s effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,
subject to EU endoresement IFRS 13, Far value measurement, provides guidance on fair value accounting
application and 1s appiicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, subject to EU
endorsement
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Notes to the financial statements year ended 31 March 2012

2. Revenue

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Printed directories 225,799 313,005
Digital media products and services 193,302 188,516
Other products and services 21,813 14,688
Total revenue 440,914 516,209
3. Employees
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
Average monthly number of employees (including executive
directors):
By activity:
Marketing and sales 185 284
Other 665 225
Total 850 509
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£000 £000
Staff costs during the year:
Wages and salaries 17,059 13,550
Social security costs 3,660 3,500
Other pension costs 5,591 11,134
Curtalment of defined benefit scheme - (35,600)
Severence 2,632 3,239
Share-based payments 1,405 1,226
Total staff costs payable for the year 30,347 (2,951)
Net change (n staff costs deferred in directories in development 36,398 6,414
Total staff costs expensed to the income statement 66,745 3,463

Details of the Company's various stock option plans are given in note 25
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3. Employees {continued)

Directors’ remuneration

The directors did not receive remuneration for therr services to the Company (2011 £nil)

4 Net finance costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Interest payable on bank lpans 632 2,086
Interest payable on loans from group undertakings (note 24} 36,343 53,161
Underlying farr value losses on cash flow hedges transferred
from equity - 30,979
Amortisation of deferred finance fees - 8,365
Net finance cost on retrement benefit obligation (note 23) - 2,668
Fair value charge for the time value of interest rate caps 5,901 1,774
Other interest payable 752 3
Total finance costs 43,628 99,036
Interest receivable on bank deposits (818) (1,103)
Interest recevable on loans to group undertakings (note 24) {19,416) (16,924)
Net finance income on retirement benefit obhgation (note 23) (4,532) -
Cther interest recevable - (5)
Total finance income (24,766) (18,032)
Net finance costs 18,862 81,004
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5. Taxation

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Current tax:
Current year corporation tax 8,334 6,953
Adjustments in respect of prior years (10,307) {188)
Total current tax (credit) / charge
{1,973) 6,765
Deferred tax:
Current year (credit} / charge (3,279) 9,993
Adjustments in respect of prior years 4,366 (30)
Other (3,360) -
Total deferred tax {credit} / charge (2,273) 9,963
Tax {credit) / charge on profit before tax {4,246) 16,728

The tax charge for the year 1s higher (2011 higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax

{2011 28%) The differences are explained below

in the UK of 26%

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
(Loss) / profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK (47,408) 16,122
Effects of:
Non-deductible items 52,124 612
Adjustments in respect of prior years (5,941) (218)
Effect of changes in tax rate 339 212
Deferred tax habilites written off {(3,360) -
Tax charge on (loss) / profit before tax {4,246} 16,728
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Tax credited / {charged) directly to equity i1s as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Current tax on actuanal losses 4,380 3,141
Deferred tax on actuarial losses 292 (17,510)

Deferred tax on fair valuations of financial instruments used as

hedges 7,746 (8,203)
Total taxation recorded in equity 12,418 (22,572)

Duning the year, legislation to reduce the UK corporation tax rate from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012
was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date The effect of this change has been reflected in the financial
statements

The March 2012 UK Budget Statement confirmed that further legislation would reduce the tax rate by 1% per
annum to 22% by 1 April 2014 These further changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements

6. Dividends

In accordance with IFRSs, dividends are not recognised until the period in which they are approved No dividend
was proposed or paid dunng the year (2011 £nil)

7. Goodwill
At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Balance at beginning of year 1,009,191 1,009,191
Impairment charge (218,027) -
Total 791,164 1,009,191

Goodwill 1s not amortised but s tested annually for imparrment The impairment analysis 1s based on certain
assumptions, including future revenue and profit growth, that can change the conclusion on whether goodwill 1s
imparred Imparrment occurs where the carrying value of a CGU exceeds the higher of its farr value less cost to
sell and its value In use Any imparrment loss I1s applied against goodwill, then the excess 1s allocated to other
longlived mntangible assets

In 2012 Yell measured the carrying value against the value in use and in 2011 Yell measured against a directors’
farr value less cost to sell, both of which used a discounted cash flow model In both years the cash flow
projections were based on Board reviewed cash flow projections extrapolated to ten years, reflecting the need to
develop new product and brand awareness Future financial results expected for all the operations were reduced
to reflect the worsening economic outlook, the latest revenue trends for the legacy directory products and, in

accordance with |AS 36, were Iimited in 2012 by the fact that the expected revenues of the new strategy are not
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7. Goodwill (continued)
yet confirmed

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2012, imparrment losses of £218m on Goodwill in relation to its operations were
recorded There was no goodwill write down in 2011 At 31 March 2012, the far values of the operations
equalled their carrying values and consequently, any adverse change in a key assumption with all other

assumptions held unchanged would cause recogrution of further impairment losses

Cash flows beyond the ten year period are calculated using the terrinal growth rates stated below In addition,
revenue growth over the ten year pertod ending 31 March 2022 1s a key assumption in the 31 March 2012
valuation as discussed above The carrying value of Goodwill after impairrments and the key assumptions used

for estimating are as follows

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£000 £'000

Net book value
Carrying value of goodwill 791,164 1,009,191
Revenue compound annual growth rate 0 4% 12 8%
Revenue terminal growth rate 18% 18%
Pre-tax discount rate 11.3% 90%

The discounted cashflow calculatons are sensitive to changes In the long-term growth rates and discount rates
The long-term growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts of long-term naticnal rates included in industry
reports The discount rate used Is based on the weighted average cost of capital before tax and reflect specific

risks relating to the relevant segment
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8. Other non-current intangible assets

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£000 £'000
Cost
Balance at beginming of year 75,610 60,041
Additions 19,335 15,636
Disposals (2,404) (97)
Reclassification - 30
Total cost at end of year 92,541 75,610
Amortisation
Balance at beginning of year (48,836) (38,117)
Charge for the year (12,950) (10,816)
Disposals 2,041 97
Total amortisation at end of year {59,745) (48,836)
Net book value at end of year 32,796 26,774
Other non-current intangible assets compnse software development costs and mtellectual property
9. Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold Office
improvements equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
Opening balance 21,330 66,191 87,521
Additions 28 1,081 1,109
Disposals (3,279) {9,477) (12,756)
Total cost at 31 March 2012 18,079 57,795 75,874
Depreciation
Opening balance (9,360) (55,040) (64,400)
Disposals 2,964 9,342 12,306
Depreciation (2,333) (6,071) {8,404)
Total depreciation at 31 March 2012 {8,729) {51,769) {60,498)
Net book value at 31 March 2012 9,350 6,026 15,376
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9. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold Office
improvements equipment Total
£000 £'000 £000
Cost
Opening balance 13,120 76,665 89,785
Additons 9,824 5,810 15,634
Disposals {1,615) (16,284) {17,899}
Balance at 31 March 2011 21,329 66,191 87,520
Depreciation
Opening balance (8,163} (63,614) (71,777
Disposals 1,520 16,054 17,574
Depreciation (2,716) (7,479) {10,195)
Total dapreciation at 31 March 2011 (9,359) (55.039) {64,398)
Net book value at 31 March 2011 11,970 11,152 23,122
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10.Investments

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 April 1,219 1,219
At 31 March 1,219 1,219
Impairment
Impairments charged - -
Carrying value 1,219 1,219

On 29 Apnl 2010, the Company acquired 112,466 ordinary shares of £0 01p each and 63,107 preferred ordinary
shares of £0 01p each in Trusted Places Limited, a company operating social networking websites with user
input for a total consideration of £1,219,399 The far value of the assets acqurred approximate to the

constderation paid

The interests of the Company 10 its subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 were as follows

2012 2011
Carrying Camying
Company Country of 2012 2011 value value
Direct subsidiaries activity incorporation % owned % owned £'000 £'000
Advertising space
Yellow Pages Sales Limited sales United Kingdom 100 100 - -
Social networking
Trusted Places Limited website operation United Kingdom 100 100 1,219 1,219
Total carrying value 1,219 1,219

The subsidiary undertakings have the same year end as the Company

The Company 1s exempt from the requirement to prepare and deliver consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 as the Company and its subsidianes are included
within the consolidated financial statements of its ulimate parent company hibu plc
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11.Inventory
Note topic

Inventory of £465,075 comprises paper stocks to be used in production of books and the paper and printing
costs awaiting shipment The cost of the paper recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales
amounted to £8,352,085

12.Directories in development

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cost at beginning of the year 45,895 56,227
Additions 97,814 107,299
Amortisation in cost of sales (143,244) {(117,631)
Transfer into inventories {465) -
Cost at the end of the year - 45,895

Amortisation into cost of sales includes an exceptional amount of £37 8m written off at 31 March 2012 Until 31
March, Yell capitalised the costs of directories in development The transformation to the digital model means
Yell can no longer reliably estimate the allocation of costs between printed and online dwectories for which an
intangible asset was previously recogrised and other streams for which no intangible asset can be recognised
Therefore 1AS 38 requires these costs to be expensed when incurred
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13 Trade and other receivables

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Net trade recewvables 66,196 189,099
Prepayments and accrued income 5,246 6,553
Other receivables 4,878 3,434
Accrued income 32,444 1,643
Amounts owed by group undertakings (note 24) 543,124 508,626
Total amounts falling due within one year 651,888 709,355
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings (note 24) 3,119 2,485
Deferred financing fees - 54
QOther - 4,001
Total amounts failing due after more than one year 3,119 6,630
Total trade and other receivables 655,007 715,985

Trade receivables are ncn-interest bearing and generally have terms between 30 days and 10 months Due to
therr short matunties and the non-interest bearing nature of these financial assets, the far value of trade and
other receivables approximates book value The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the far
value of each class of receiwvable mentioned above Concentratrons of credit nsk with respect to trade
receivables are imited due to the Company's customer base being large, geographically diverse and unrelated
The Company does not hold any collateral as secunty

The carrying amounts of trade and other recewvables are denominated in stering The Company’s trade
receivables and accrued income are stated after deducting a provision for doubtful debts and sales allowances
The movement in the provision for doubtful debts was as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£'000 £000

Balance at beginning of the year (34,157) (42,008)
Charged to income statement {17,999) (20,913)
Wntten off 24,793 28,764
Balance at end of the year (27,363) (34,157)

Trade recewvables can become imparred, generally when customers are in financial distress, before being
considered uncollectible Trade recewvables are considered impared only after completion of collection
processes designed locally to collect montes from slow-players or, if earlter, when amounts are more than one
year past due At 31 March 2012 the carrying value and estimated recoverable amount of trade receivables past
due and tmpaired was £nil {2011 £nil), after deducting the related prowvision of £11,057,000 (2011 £19,584,000)
for doubtful debts The ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables past due and impaired 1s as follows
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13.Trade and other receivables {continued)

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£'000 £000

Up to cne month past due 457 1,217
1 to 3 months past due 611 1,578
3 to 9 months past due 3,528 8,473
QOver 9 months 6,461 8,316
Gross trade receivables past due 11,057 19,584

The other classes of receivables do not contain impared assets

At 31 March 2012, gross trade receivables of £26,495,000 (2011 £16,913,000) were past due but not impaired

The ageing analysis of these gross trade receivables is as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £000

Up to 1 month past due 5,650 3,548
1 to 3 months past due 5,204 270
3 to 9 months past due 4,806 5,369
Qver 9 months 10,835 7.726
Gross trade receivables past due but not impaired 26,495 16,913

The credit quality of trade receivables past due but not imparred i1s assessed using a statistical approach to
determine the histonical allowance rate for each ageing tranche This allowance rate 1s the applied to the debt
tranches at the end of the reporting period and a provision for doubtful debts recogmised As at 31 March 2012,
£16,548,000 (2011 £12,211,000) of the total provision for doubtful debts related to trade recewables that are

past due but not impaired

14.Deferred tax assets

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Balance at beginning of year 9,361 35,572
Charged to income statement {(1,109) (275)
Credited / (charged) directly to equity 293 (25,936)
Balance at end of year 8,545 9,361

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through

future taxable profits 1s probable
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14 Deferred tax assets (continued)

The elements of net deferred tax assets recognised in the financial statements at the year end, were as follows

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£000 £'000

Tax effect of timing differences due to:

Depreciation 7,971 7,542

Financial instruments 503 1,296

Share-based payments 62 39

Net operating losses - 484

Other 9 -

Recognised deferred tax assets 8,545 9,361

There are no amounts of deferred tax assets unrecogmised as at 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil)

Deferred tax liabilities At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Balance at beginning of year 13,385 3,920

Credited directly to equity {7,746) (223)

Charged to income statement {3,382) 9,688

Balance at end of year 2,257 13,385

The elements of net deferred tax labilites recognised In the financial statements at the year end were as

follows
At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£000 £000
Tax effect of timing differences due to-
Intangible assets - 3,640
Defined benefit pension scheme 2,257 9,745
Recognised deferred tax liabilities 2,257 13,385

15.Risk management
Formats

Overview

The financial nsks faced by the Group include hquicity, credit risk and the effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange and interest rates The primary role of Yell's treasury functions i1s to ensure that adequate hiquidity 1s
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15.Risk management (continued)

Formats (continued)
avaliable to meet the Group's funding requirements as they arnse and that financial nsk arsing from Yell's
underlying operations 1s effectively identified and managed

The treasury function also monitors the key objective of remairuing within the ratios that the lenders of Yell's bank
debt have set as covenants

The treasury function 1s not a profit centre and 1ts objective 15 to manage risk at optmum cost Yell's treasury
function conducts its operations in accordance with policies and procedures approved by the Board Dervative
financial instruments are executed only for hedgng purposes, and transactions that would be speculative In
nature are expressly forbidden

There has been no change in the role that financial instruments have in creating or changing the Group's rnsk
between 31 March 2012 and the date of these financial statements

Capital management

Yell manages the capital requirements of the Group by maintaining leverage within the terms of its debt facilities
agreement Yell manages capital in order to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
Issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt

Consistently with other corporations, the Group menitors capttal on the basis of a debt-to-profit ratio This ratio Is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted profit Net debt 1s calculated as total debt (as shown in the balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents Adjusted profit 1s twelve months’ EBITDA adjusted for certain items
defined in Yell's Facilities Agreement The ratio has decreased from 5§ 1 0 for the year ended 31 March 2011
to 48 1 0 for the year ended 31 March 2012

Liquidity and funding

Yell maintains sufficient facihhes to meet its normal funding requirements over the medium term At 31 March
2012 Yell had access to an undrawn, committed revolving credit facihity {subject to covenant adherence) of
£75 0m unt! 30 Apnl 2014 that Yell could use to mitigate the potential operational nsks Yell also had cash of
£134 6m at 31 March 2012 Yell believes that the Group has sufficient access to working capital to meet its
operating and capital expenditure requirements in the 2013 financial year

Yell has contractual debt obligations and related covenants that reflect its level of borrowing The net cash
interest cover covenant requires that the ratio of EBITDA (adjusted for exceptional items and acquisitions during
the year) for the latest twelve month period to net cash interest payable for the latest twelve month pertod does
not fall below specific threshold ratios at specific test dates The debt cover covenant requires that the ratio of
net debt, excluding deferred financing fees and restated at the calculated average exchange rate for the relevant
EBITDA, at the testing date to EBITDA for the latest twelve month period should not exceed specific threshold
ratios at specific test dates Yell paid fees of £22m, plus a potential further 2%, to obtain the lenders’ agreement
to revise this latter covenant in December 2011 The existing threshold ratios at 31 March 2012 and for each
test date until 30 June 2014 are as set out In the table below The net debt to EBITDA covenant 1s adjusted for
debt buy backs as per the amended facility agreement Future ratios set out below will also be adjusted for any
future debt buy back below par
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15.Risk management {continued)

Formats (continued)
Cash interest Debt cover

Test date cover ratio ratio

31 March 2012 2.25:1 5791
30 June 2012 2271 5791
30 September 2012 2.32:1 5791
31 December 2012 2.40;1 5541
31 March 2013 2.49.1 5291
30 June 2013 2.551 5041
31 March 2013 2631 4791
31 December 2013 2.73:1 4541
31 March 2014 2841 4291
30 June 2014 2911 4041

Yell operated within #ts debt covenants for all periods presented in these financial statements with headroom for
the year ended 31 March 2012 of 34% on the cash interest cover ratio and 14% on the debt cover ratio Had the
debt buy back and covenant reset not taken place, the Group would still have had headroom on its previous
covenants However, as a consequence of increasingly difficult trading conditions and a greater proportion of
future Income expected to come from as yet unproven new strategies, there 1s a higher risk in the current year
than in the previous year that the Group would not be able to meet its financial covenants with its lenders A
discussion of the nsks associated with the future tightening of debt covenants 1s presented 1n note 1

Interest rates

Yell's policy 1s to minimise the exposure to fluctuating interest rates by ensuring an approprate balance of
floating and fixed interest rates The Group’s primary funding i1s through its senior credit faciliies, on which
interest 1s payable at floating rate based on LIBOR or EURIBOR plus a margin

In order to manage the associated interest rate nisk, Yell fixes a portion of its interest rates through hedging
arrangements

. At the end of each quarter Yell reviews its future interest payment obligations in assessing the
appropriate amount of hedging Yell has fixed or capped interest rates on 65% of its indebtedness under the
term bank facilities until December 2012 (see note 17)

. At 31 March 2012, Yell had £4 Om net mark-to-market liabilittes on interest rate swaps that will be
recognised as an increase In tnterest expense when settled in the future if market interest rates reman
unchanged (see note 17)

Foreign currency exchange rates

The Group 15 exposed to currency fluctuations on the translation of its overseas operations into sterling Yell
mitigates this exposure by borrowing in the same currencies as its iIncome generating assets Group borrowings
are drawn down In the principal currencies of its operations, namely US dollar, euro and sterling

The Group does not currently intend to use dervative instruments to hedge any foreign exchange translation
rate rnisk relating to foreign currency-denominated financial labidities, although Yell will continue to review this
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15.Risk management {continued)

Formats (continued)
practice

Yell has operations In countries where the functional currency 1s not stering Significant cash inflows and
outflows associated with the Group’s operations within a country are generally denominated tn local currency to
limit the nisks of foreign exchange movements on the local results However, in certain situations, some
contracts have to be denominated in currencies other than the local functional currency Yell would use
derivative financial instruments to hedge transactional foreign exchange rate risk only on significant transactions
that are not denominated in local currency

Yell also operates a centralised cash pooling scheme that exposes Yell to the risk of foreign currency
fluctuations Yell uses derivative financial instruments to hedge this foreign exchange rate nsk At 31 March
2012, Yell had £nil net mark-to-market liabilities on foreign exchange rate hedges that will be recognised as an
increase In interest expense when settled in the future If foreign exchange rates remain unchanged

Counterparties

Cash deposits and the use of dernvative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps, interest rate caps
and forward foreign exchange contracts, for hedging purposes give rise to credit risk on amounts due from
counterparttes Yell manages this risk by imiting the aggregate amounts and therr duration, depending con the
external credit ratings of the relevant counterparty

UK defined benefit pension plan

The Group 1s required to agree its contributions to the plan with the trustees based on actuanal advice Such
agreement must be reached in a way that complies with the UK Pensions Regulator's ‘Scheme Specific Funding’
guidance Any failure to agree would result in the intervention of the Pensions Regulator and, possibly, an
imposed settlement The full funding valuation that has an effective date of 5 April 2011 has not been agreed at
the date of these financial statements
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16.Loans and other borrowings

The Company s within a group of companies (the “secunty group”) that are party to debt arrangements
associated with bank facilities We manage the capital requirements of the Company by marntaining leverage of
the Company within the terms of the debt faciity agreement The Company’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern

The Company sets the amount of ¢capital in proportion to nsk The Company manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to 1t in the light of changes in economic conditions and the rnisk characteristics of the
underlying assets

Consistently with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to profit ratio This
ratio 1s calculated as net debt / adjusted profit Net debt 1s calculated as total debt (as shown on the statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents Adjusted profit 1s defined by lending institutions In our facilities
agreement

The terms of the facilities agreement require the secunty group to maintain better than specified consolidated
financtal ratios for net debt to earnings, before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation {(EBITDA as defined in
the facihties agreement, including a pro-forma adjustment to the EBITDA of any acquisitions of less than one
year) and EBITDA to net cash interest payable These financial ratios have to be prepared for the twelve-month
period preceding the test date and reported to the lenders under the faciliies agreement on a quarterly basis
The hibu ple was In compliance with these terms at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012
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The following table sets out the borrowing and net debt total of the Company

At 31 March At 31 March
Interest rate 2012 Interest rate 2011
% £'000s % £'000s
Amounts falling due within one year
Senitor credit facilities - external - 411-4 36 18,921
Unamortised 1ssue costs - (540)
Total external borrowings - 18,381
Senior credit faciibies - iIntemal (note 24) - 775,637
Total amounts falling due within cne
year - 794,018
At 31 March At 31 March
Interest rate 2012 Interest rate 2011
% £'000s % £'000s
Amounts falling due after more than
one year
Total loans and other borrowings - 794,018
Cash and cash equivalents - {(143,763)
Net debt - 650,255

The senior credit facility consists of a term loan that was arranged under a faciities agreement dated 27 April
2006 The senior credit facilities also include a revolving credit facility of £75 0 million (2011 £196 8 million),
including £75 0 million under a new Facility Agreement dated 30 November 2009 (2011 £193 2 miilkon) At 31
March 2012, £nil had been drawn down under the revolving credit facility (2011 - £nil} Under the terms of the
senior credit faciities, including the revolving credit facility, the lenders have security over shares in hibu plc's
principal operating companies

On 30 November 2009 debt due to consenting lenders under the credit facility agreement dated 26 April 2006
was acqurred by a fellow group undertaking, Yell Finance (UK) Ltd The debt due to the fellow group
undertaking, together with the amounts due to the remaining external lenders under the facility dated 27 Apnl
2006, has been settled in full dunng the year in accordance with the terms of the facilittes agreement
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17.Financial instruments and nsk management

The Company's approach to management of financial nsks 15 set out on pages 2-3 The accounting
classffication of each class of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilies, together with their farr

values Is set out below

Fair value Amortised
denvatives cost loans
used as and other  Total book Total fair
hedges Receivables liabihties value value
At 31 March 2012 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Denvative financial instruments 8 - - 8 8
Trade and other receivables - 528,686 - 528,686 528,686
Cash at bank and in hand - 58,780 - 58,780 58,780
Total financial assets 8 587,466 - 587,474 587,474
Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - (611,158) {611,158) (611,158)
Total financial liabilities - - {611,158) (611,158) (611,158)
Fair value Amortised
denvatives cost loans
used as and other Total book Total farr
hedges Receivables lhabilites value value
At 31 March 2011 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 E'000
Assets
Denvative financial instruments 630 - - 630 630
Trade and other recewvables - 715,985 - 715,985 715,985
Cash at bank and in hand - 143,763 - 143,763 143,763
Total financial assets 630 859,748 - 860,378 860,378
Liabilihes
Trade and other payables - - (691,621) (691,621) (691,621)
Short-term borrowings - - (794,018) (794,018) (18,381)
Total financial habilities - - {1,485639) (1,485,639} {710,002)

The far value of trade and other receivables, cash at bank and in hand, and trade and other payables
approximated to carrying value due to the short matunity of the instruments

There are no matenal monetary assets or liabilittes denominated in currencies other than pounds Sterling, US

dollars and Euros

The Company contracts external hedges on behalf of certain fellow group undertakings and has put In place
internal contracts with those entities that precisely replicate its external arrangement entered into on their behalf

thus leaving its economic effect as neutral in respect of these transactions
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Movements in fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges (to the extent they
are effective} are recognised in equity and will be recognised n the income statement when the underlying
hedge transactions effect the income statement

Total book values and total fair values both include unamortised deferred financing fees at amortised cost, which
approximate faer value

The ineffective portion of interest rate hedges and foreign exchange hedges recognised in the income statement
amounted to £nil (2011 £nil)

More detal on the Company's accounting for financial instruments i1s included in the Company’s accounting
policies on page 22

Currency profile and interest rate risk

The Interest rate profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, after taking into account interest rate
swaps are as follows

Financial Financial
assets liabiities Net financial
Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate Total liablities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2012 58,780 - - - -
At 31 March 2011 143,763 (656,361) (138,197) {794,558) {650,795}

Total financtal labilities are presented gross before unamorttsed costs which amount to £nil at 31 March 2012
(2011 £540,000) Details of interest and matunty profiles of specific borrowings are given in note 16 There are
no material monetary assets or liabilittes denominated in currencies other than local reporting currencies
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Interest rate profile

Details of year-end interest rates on borrowings are set out in note 16 For the financial habiliies with fixed rates
of interest, after taking into account interest rate swaps and the average periods for which the rates are fixed
are

Weighted

average

Weighted period for

average which the

interest rate rate is fixed

% Years

At 31 March 2012 0 0
At 31 March 2011 38 12

The floating rate financial liabilities bear interest at rates fixed in advance for periods ranging, at the Company’s
option, from one month to six months by reference to LIBOR The Company expects to continue to fix its floating
rate financial iabilities at the end of each month by reference to one month LIBOR at that time

Borrowing facilities and liquidity risk

The Company has access to contractually committed banking faciiies to miigate any hquidity nsk it may face
There were committed revolving credit facilities at 31 March 2012 of £75 0 million (2011 £196 8 million) of which
£nil had been drawn down at 31 March 2012 (2011 nil} £3 6m of these facilities expired April 2011 and the
balance will expire in Apnil 2014

The following table analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable (calculated using forward/spot
interest rates), the carrying values and the fair values of the Company’s borrowings at the date of the statement
of financial posiion The Company also has short-term recewvables and payables that arise in the normal course
of business and these are not included in the following table Any cash flows based on the floating rate interest
are based on Interest rates prevaiing at 31 March in the relevant year All derivative amounts are shown gross,
although amounts are settled net wherever possible Amounts drawn under the revolving credit faciity are
treated as due within one year with interest calculated as payable at the end or, where these are not available,
on quoted prices of comparable debt 1ssued by octher companies
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At 31 March 2012

The Company I1s party to an Inter-creditor Agreement with other lenders and members of the Yell Group The
terms of this agreement are such that loans made to the Company by other members of the Group are
subordinated and cannot be repaird before external lenders to the Group Accordingly, all loans made to the
Company by other members of the Group will be revised and extended when they mature

At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 the far value of the total amounts owed has been calculated using a
discount rate based on current projections of floating interest rates in the future plus a credit margin determined
by reference to margins observed on the debt of comparable businesses This discount rate has been used to
derive the present value of contractually scheduled future interest and principle payments
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At 31 March 2011

Due
Due between
Due between two and Due three Total Deferred
within one  one and three yearsand amounts finance Carmying
year two years later owed fees value Farr value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Due within one year
Term loans 18,921 - - - 18,921 (540) 18,381 18,559
Term loans - intercompany 775,637 - - - 775,637 - 775,637 760,771
Total due within one year, or on
demand 794,558 - - - 794,558 {540) 794,018 779,330
Due after one year
Total loans and other
borrowings 794,558 - - - 794,558 (540) 794,018 -
Floating rate interest 35,184 44,872 50,782 13,559 144,343
Fixed interest rate swap
outflows 6,577 1,609 - - 8,186
Floating interest rate swap
inflows (2,609) (956) - - (3,565)
Total payments 833,710 45,525 50,782 13,559 943,522
Contractual payments analysed
between
GBP 833,710 45,525 50,782 13,559 943,522
Total payments 833,710 45,525 59,782 13,559 943,522
Contractual payments analysed
between
Fixed 801,135 1,609 - - 802,690
Unfixed 32,575 43,916 50,782 13,569 140,832
Total payments 833,710 45,525 50,782 13,559 943,522
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18.Derivative financial instruments and hedging actvities

Interest at around 85% of the Company's debt was paid or hedged at fixed rates until April 2011 Thereafter
approximately 55% of the Company’s floating rate debt, resuiting from refinanced intercompany loans, was
hedged at fixed rates untl December 2011 Thereafter c38% of the Company's floating rate debt 1s hedged at
fixed rates untl December 2012, The Company has also entered into foreign exchange contracts to hedge
known cross border cash flows early in the financial year

The hedges give rise to the following balances reported in the statement of finanecial position

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Derivatives

Interest rate caps - non-current asset - - 1,037 1,037

Foreign exchange contracts - current
asset 8 8 630 630

The fair values of the denvative financial instruments are the amounts at which the instruments couid be
exchanged In a current transaction between willing parties, other than in forced iquidation or sale

The gross notional amount of interest rate swaps and caps was nil (2011 1 0 biflion fixing rates on average for
100 days) and the gross notional amount of foretgn exchange contracts was £0 08 miilion (2011 £38 6 million)

The carrying-value of the above dervative financial instruments equal therr fair value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

The maximum exposure to credit nsk relating to derivative financial instruments at the reporting date 1s the far
vaiue of the dernvative assets in the balance sheet

The Company has reviewed all ts material contracts for embedded derivatives, for which separate accounting
would be required, and has concluded that there are no material embedded derivatives
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19 Trade and other payables

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 11,221 16,872
Other taxation and social secunty 1,821 9,306
Accruals and other payables 52,677 68,090
Deferred income 45,921 104,473
Amounts owed to group undertakings (note 24) 372,656 492,880
Total amounts falling due in one year 484,296 691,621
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred income 80 149
Other payables 8,107 6,715
Amounts owed to group undertakings {note 24) 806,256 -
Total amounts falling due after more than one year 814,443 6,864
Total trade and other payables 1,298,739 698,485

Current amounts owed to group undertakings are repayable at the discretion of the ultimate parent company,
hibu plc Interest 1s charged based upon the three maonth LIBOR rate in the denominated currency and interest

rates are reset at the beginning of each quarter
20.Share capital

Called up share capital

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£ £
Authorised
100 ordinary shares of £1 100 100
Allotted, called up and fully paid
73 Ordinary shares of £1 each 73 73
At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
Share premium: £'000 £'000
Share premium 325,971 325,971
Total share capital 325,971 325,971
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21.0ther reserves

Share-
based Pensions Hedging Total other
payments reserve reserve reserves

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 01 Apnl 2011 {7,648) (53,941) (5,192) (66,781)
Net actuanal gains on defined benefit pension

schemes - (47,813) - (47,813)

Changes n fair value of hedges - - 4,346 4,346
Taxaton - 12,280 - 12,280
Net income recognised directly in equity - {35,533} 4,346 (31,187)
Balance at 31 March 2012 (7,648) (89,474) (8486) (97,968)

Share-

based Pensions Hedging Total other

payments reserve reserve reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at 01 Apnl 2010 (7.648) (94,883) (22,495) (125,026)
Net actuanal gains on defined benefit pension

schemes - 55,311 - 55,311

Changes in fair value of hedges - - 25,506 25,5086
Taxation - {14,369) (8,203) (22,572)
Net income recognised directly in equity - 40,942 17,303 58,245
Balance at 31 March 2011 (7,648) {53,941) {5,192) (66,781)

22 Financial commitments, contingent liabilities and litigation

Future aggregate minimum operating lease payments for the Company at 31 March 2012 and 2011 are as

follows
At 31 March At 31 March
2012 201
£'000 £'000
Payable:
Not later than 1 year 13,905 15,749
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 34,592 35,316
Later than 5 years 67,431 71,573
Total future aggregate minimum operating lease payments 115,928 122,638

Operating lease payments expensed during the year amounted to £13,905,000 (2011 £15,691,000)
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22.Financial commitments, contingent liabilities and litigation (continued)

There are no contingent habilities or guarantees other than those mentioned below or ansing in the ordinary
course of the Company’s business and on these no material losses are anticipated

The Company participates in a Group banking arrangement whereby the Company's assets are provided as
security against Group loans

No matenal losses are anticipated on liabilities 1n the ordinary course of business
23.Pensions

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme for its employees who were employed before 1
October 2001 and defined contrnibution schemes for the remaining employees The Company's mcome
statement and statement of comprehensive income for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 included the

following pension-related charges

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Amounts charged to operating profit £000 £000
Current service cost - 10,036
Termination benefits 1,300 5,960
Amounts expensed for defined benefit schemes 1,300 15,996

Contributions payable by other group undertakings - (7,393)
Net expense for defined benefit schemes 1,300 8,603
Amounts expensed for defined contribution schemes 4,291 2,531
Total operating charge 5,591 11,134

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Net finance cost from defined benefit scheme £000 £'000

Expected return on pension scheme assets (24,454) (21,418)
Finance cost on pension scheme liabilities 19,922 24,086
Net finance (income) from defined benefit scheme {4,532) 2,668
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23.Pensions (continued)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

Amount recognised in statement of recognised income and 2012 2011

expense £'000 £'000
Actual return less expected return on penston scheme assets 13,539 371
Expenience gains ansing on the scheme (3,689) 22,488

Changes in assumphons underlying the present value of the

scheme liabilites {57,663) 32,452
Actuanal (loss) gain {47,813) 55,311

Tax credit/(charge) on actuarial loss (gain) recognised in equity 12,280 (14,381)
Actuarial (loss) gain, net of tax {(35,533) 40,930

The cumulative actuarial loss net of tax recognised at 31 March 2012 amounts to £562 8 million (2011 £17 2
milhion loss)

UKPP — Defined benefit sections

There are three defined benefit sections of the UKPP, which have been closed to new entrants since 1 October
2001 The scheme offers both pensions in retirement and death benefits to members The full actuanal valuation
at 5 Aprii 2008, updated to 31 March 2012, showed a surplus of £8 4m Pension benefits are based on years of
quaiifying service and final pensionable salary With effect from 31 March 2011, the defined benefit sections of
the Plan were closed to future accrual Active members at 31 March 2011 were granted leaving service benefits
and offered membership of a new Section 6 of the Pian on a defined contribution basis

The Group 1s required to agree its contributions to the plan with the trustees based on actuanal advice Such
agreement must be reached in a way that complies with the UK Pensions Regulator’s ‘Scheme Specific Funding’
gudance Any failure to agree would result in the intervention of the Pensions Regulator and, possibly, an
imposed settlement The full funding valuation that has an effective date of 5 April 2011 has not been agreed at
the date of these financial statements

Net surplus {obligation)

The YPP net surplus (obligation) at the date of the statement of financial position represents the farr value of
assets held to fund future benefit payments net of the present value of scheme lhiabilities, as follows

At 31 March At 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'00C
Fair value of plan assets 445,098 408,024
Present value of scheme liabilities (435,698) (370,717)
Net surplus 9,400 37,307
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23 Pensions {(continued)

The level of contributtons 1s based on the current service costs and the expected future cash flows of the
scheme From 1 January 2009, the Group has paid a contribution rate of 28 8% of penstonable earnings
(inclusive of expenses and life assurance premiums, but exclusive of the Pension Protection Fund levy)
Additionally, with effect from 1 January 2009, the Group agreed to pay contributions totalling £58m, spread
equally over 51 monthly payments, to repar the deficit of £47 6m (plus interest) reported in the full actuarial
funding valuation at 5 Apnl 2008 Following closure of the defined benefit sections of the Plan, employer
contributions In respect of the deficit remain payable and the Group’s regular contribution rate has decreased to
2% of pensionable earnings to cover expenses and life assurance premiums only The next evaluation of future
contribution rates will be after the conclusion of the current full funding valuation, which has an effective date of
5 Apnl 2012

The following amounts explain the movement in the pension provision for the years ended 31 March 2012 and
2011

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £'000
Net obligation at beginning of year 37,307 (63,333)
Movement in year:
Current service cost - (10,092)
Contributions 16,713 28,449
Past service costs (1,300) (5,960)
Curtaiiment gamn - 35,600
Finance income (cost) 4,532 (2,668)
Actuanal (loss) gain (47,852) 55,311
Net surplus at end of the year 9,400 37,307

The level of contributions 1s based on the current service costs and the expected cashflows of the scheme The
Company 1s required to agree its contnbutions to the plan with the trustees based on actuarial advice Such
agreement must be reached in a way which complies with the UK Penston Regulator's “Scheme Specific
Funding” guidance

Any falure to agree would result In the intervention of the Pension Regulator and possibly, an imposed
settlement From 1 January 2009, the Company has paid a contribution rate of 29 8% of pensionable earnings
(inclusive of expenses and life assurance premiums, but inclusive of the Pension Protection Fund Levy)
Additionally, with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company agreed to pay contnbutions totalling £58 million
spread equally over 51 monthly payments, to reparr the deficit of £47 6 million (plus interest) reported in the full
actuarnal funding valuation at 5 April 2008 Following closure of the defined benefit sections of the Plan, employer
contributions in respect of the deficit remain payable and the Company's regular contribution rate has decreased
to 2% of pensionable earnings to cover expenses and life assurance premiums only The next evaluation of
future contribution rates will be after the next full funding valuation, which will have an effective date of 5 Apni
2012 funding valuation

Contributions of £14 1 milhon (2011 £23 7 million), plus £2 6 milion (2011 £4 7 million) in respect of benefit
augmentations were made in the year Before the closure of the Plan, Plan participants were able to accept a
reduction in thesr salary in return for non-contributory membership of the Plan, the reductton being equal to the
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23.Pensions {continued)

contributions otherwise payable The Company made contributions of a cerresponding amount, which have been
included in the 2011 figures above In the year ended 31 March 2011, this amounted to £1 6 million (5 5% of
pensionable earnings) Total contributions in financial year 2013 are expected to be around £15 miflion

Valuation assumptions

The UKYPP net surplus at 31 March 2012 and 2011 based on the valuation at 5 April 2008 updated to 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011 respectively The updated valuations carned out by professionally qualified
independent actuaries using the following key assumptions

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

% per annum % per annum

Dhiscount rate 4.7 55
Expected return on assets 5.6 60
Salary increases 0 44
Pension increases linked to RPI 35 36
Pension increases linked to CPI 25 27

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on published statistics The average Iife
expectancy (In years) on retirement at age 60 of a member currently aged 45 15 as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011
Years Years
Male 295 204
Female 31.0 309

The average life expectancy (in years) on retirement at age 60 of a member currently aged 60 1s as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

Years Years

Male 27.9 278
Female 295 294

The assumpthions used above may need to be adjusted in the future to take into account a full actuanal valuation
at 5 April 2012 Any such changes could materially affect the estimated labiities of the scheme and future
contribution rates

Assets

The YPP assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds that are invested in UK and overseas equities,
diversified growth funds, property, debt secunties and index linked gilts
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23.Pensions {continued)

The trustees of the scheme are required to act in the best interest of the schemes beneficiaries The
appointment of trustees to the scheme I1s determined by the Company in accordance with the scheme's trust
documentation, as modified by UK statute An independent professional trustee and three other trustees are
appointed by the Company Three further trustees are elected by the active members

Asset values will Increase and decrease as markets rise and fall The trustees and management have an agreed
strategy to mitigate the nsk of having insufficient funds f markets fall The trustees annually match the low-risk
asset portfolio against the cash outflows for the following twelve years Against longer term cash pay-outs they
match a combination of investments in index linked gilts to mitigate inflation and interest rate risk, and higher nsk
assets to get higher rates of growth The trustees also work with management to ensure sufficient assets will be
available to settle cbligations extending beyond the honzon of 12 years

The trustees set therr asset allocation approach to split the portfolio into “pre honzon” and “post horizon”
categories The “pre honizon™ assets are all debt secunities and at 31 March 2012 comprised around 28% (2011
28%) of the total assets The “post horizon™ assets have allocation targets of 40% equities, 20% dversified
growth, 10% property and 30% index linked gilts

The expected rates of return of each asset type in the YPP are set by reference to yields available on
government bonds at the measurement date and appropriate risk margins and are stated gross of the expected
levy to the UK Pension Protection Fund The assets in the YPP and the annual expected return were

At 31 At 31 At 31 At 31
March March March March
2012 2012 2011 2011
% £'000 % £'000
Equities 8.50 122,002 8 00 124,394
Dwersified growth 8.00 44,905 750 34,652
Bonds 4.40 123,057 525 114,791
Property 750 30,089 700 28,752
Index linked gilts 2.90 124,819 385 102,987
Other 0.30 226 025 2,448
Total assets at fair value 445,098 408,024

Changes in the farr value of plan assets were as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Opening fair value of plan assets 408,024 375,235
Expected return 24,454 21,481
Actuanial gain 13,539 YR
Contributions by employer 16,704 28,449
Contributions by participants - 37
Benefits paid (17,623) {17,549)
Fair value of plan assets 445,098 408,024
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The actuanial gain in the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 represents the difference between the
expected return on plan assets and the actual return on plan assets as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Expected return on plan assets 24,454 21,481
Actuarnal gain 13,539 K¥al
Actual return on plan assets 37,993 21,852

Liabilities

The present value of scheme liabiities at the date of the statement of financial position are measured by
discounting the best estimate of future cashflows to be pawd out by the scheme using the projected unit method
The projected unit method 1s an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilites make
allowance for projected earnings (if applicable - benefits ceased to be linked to projected earnings with effect
from 31 March 2011) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Opening present value of defined benefit habiites 370,717 438,648
Current service cost - 10,092
Past service cost 1,300 5,960
Interest cost 19,922 24,086
Actuanal loss / {gain} 61,382 (54,957}
Contributions by participants - 37
Benefits paid (17,623) (17,549)
Curtaiiments and settlements - (35,600)
Present value of defined benefit Liabilities 435,698 370,717

The actuanal loss In the year ended 31 March 2012 was primarily the result of a decrease in AA Corporate bond
yields In the year ended 31 March 2011, the actuarnal gain was pnmanily the result of a decrease in RPI inflation,
a higher number of members leaving service than expected, and the switch from RPI to CPI for some pension
increases under the Plan The curtailment gain in 2011 resulted from the closure of the defined benefit sections
of the Plan to future accrual and the granting of leaving service benefits to all actice members at 31 March 2011
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23 Pensions (continued)

The profile of expected undiscounted payments by the scheme for benefits earned up to 31 March 2012 1s as
follows

Payments in millions

£45m

£40m
£35m
£30m / \
£25m / \
£20m / \
£15m
/ N\

£10

£5: / \

£0m R

2012 2022 2032 2042 2052 2062 2072 2082

The Company estimates that the average duration of these cashflows, representing the weighted average term
to payment of the undiscounted benefit payments, 1s 34 years

The cost of settling all Plan liabilities at the date of the statement of financial position by buying out benefits with
a sutable insurer will generally be higher than the present value of scheme liabilities because an insurer would
expect to charge a premium for the nsks that would be passed to them The Company estimates that the
amount required to settle the Plan's liabilities with an insurance company at 31 March 2012 would be around
£710 million, which 1s around £265 milion more than the value of the plan assets
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The history of experience gains and losses I1s as follows
Year
ended 31 Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (435,698) (370,717) (438,568) (296,220) (294,842}
Fair value of plan assets 445,098 408,024 375,235 274,330 308,870
Surplus / (deficit) on the plans 9,400 37,307 (63,333) (21,880) 14,028
Difference between the expected and actual
return on scheme assets
- Gain / (loss) (£'000) 13,539 371 63,629 (64,398) (24,410)
- Gain / (loss) as a proportion of scheme assets 3% - 17% 23% 8%
Expenence gains / (losses) on scheme
liabiities and changes in assumptions
- Gain / (loss) (£'000) 61,382 54,957 (122,395) 32,732 68,278
- Gain / (loss) as a proportion of present value
of scheme liabihties (14)% 15% (28)% 11% 23%

Sensitivity analysis

The present value of the pension obhgations at 31 March 2012 was calculated on the basis that the real interest
rate at the balance sheet date was 1 2%, which 1s the difference between the discount rate and RPI inflation
The discount rate and expected inflation are determined by reference to specific types of debt instruments being
traded in the open market Increasing or decreasing the assumed real interest rate to 1 3% or 1 1% per annum,
respectively, would decrease or increase the present value of the pension liabiities by approximately £11 milhon
The effect on the market value of assets cannot be estimated because the values of the Plan's investments do
not always change in line with real interest rates

The present value of pension kablities was determined on assumed life expectancies for men and women as set
out in the assumptions above We estimate that an increase in life expectancy of one year for all members could
have increased the present value of pension liabiities by approximately £10 million

YPP - Defined contribution section

The pension cost in respect of this section represents contributions payable to the funds and amounted to
4,291,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £2,531,000) Cutstanding contributions amounted to £nil as
at 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil)
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24.Related party transactions

Details of transactions with other group undertakings during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 and

balances outstanding as at those dates are as follows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
Finance income £000 £000
Interest recevable from Yell Holdings 2 Limited 19,416 16,921
Interest receivable from Yell Publicidad SAU - 3
Total finance income 19,416 16,924
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
Service recharge income £000 £000
Income from Yellow Pages Sales Limited 115,774 140,285
Income from General Art Services Limited 217 1,601
Total service recharge income 116,051 141,886
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
Finance costs £'000 £000
Interest payable to Yell Finance Limited - (23,125)
Interest payable to Yell Holdings 2 Limited {3,870) {2,584)
Interest payable to Yell Finance {(UK) Limited (32,473) (27.452)
Total finance costs (36,343) (53,161)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
Service recharge (costs) / income £'000 £000
Costs payable to Yellow Pages Sales Limited {115,774) (140,285)
Costs payable to General Art Services Limited (277) (1,601)
Costs payable to Yell Publicidad SLU {1,292) -
Costs payable to Yell Connect LLC {5,119) -
Costs payable to Yellowbook, Inc (2,029) -
Costs payable to Publiguias Yell Chile SA (11) -
Costs payable to Yell Argentina SA (9) -
Costs payable to Yell Peru SAC (9) -
Income from Yell Peru SAC 252 -
Income from Yell Argentina SA 331 -
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Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Service recharge (costs) / income £000 £'000
Income from Publiguias Yell Chile SA 305 -
Income from Yell Publicidad SAU 519 -
Income from Yellowbook, Inc 2,173 -

Total service recharge costs {120,940) (141,886)

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

Non-current assets £'000 £000

Trade and other receivables:

Amounts owed by Yellow Pages Sales Limited 3,087 2,319

Amounts owed by General Art Services Limited 32 30

Total trade and other receivables 3,119 2,349

Total non-current assets 3,119 2,349

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

Current assets £000 £000

Trade and other receivables

Amounts owed by Yell Holdings 2 Limited 532,865 500,885
Amounts owed by Yell Mediaworks Limited 5,439 -

Amounts owed to Yellowbook, Inc - 5,770

Amounts owed by Yell Publicidad SAU 3,931 1,899

Amounts owed by Yell Argentina SA 332 72
Amounts owed by Publiguias Yell Chile SA 305 -
Amounts owed to Yell Peru SAC 252 -

Total trade and other receivables 543,124 508,626

Total current assets 543,124 508,626
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24 Related party transactions (continued)

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011
Current liabilities £000 £'000
Trade and other payables
Amounts owed to Yell Holdings 2 Limited (351,282) {477,669)
Amounts owed to Yell Finance (UK) Limited (1,214) (4,986)
Amounts owed to Yellowbook, Inc (7,525) (5,877)
Amounts owed to Yell Publicidad SAU (2,887) {2,284)
Amounts owed to Yell Mediaworks Limited (5,215) (2,064)
Amounts owed to Yell Connect LLC (4,504) -
Amounts owed to Yell Argentina SA {9) -
Amounts owed to Publiguias Yell Chile SA {11) -
Amounts owed to Yell Peru SAC {9) -
Total trade and other payables (372,656) (492,880)
Loans and borrowings:
Amounts cwed to Yell Finance (UK} Limited (806,256) (775,637)
Total loans and borrowings (806,256) (775,637)
Total current liabilities {1,178,912) (1,268,517)
Key management compensation was as follows

At 31 March At 31 March

2012 2011

£000 £'000
Salaries & other short term employee benefits 229 4,266
Share-based payments 8 322
Total key management compensation payments 237 4,588
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25.Employee share schemes

The Group has various stock options and other share plans in which the Company’s employees participate The
Group accounts for the plans in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of IFRS 2 Share Based
Payments IFRS 2 applies to equity settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 not vested by 1 March 2005
and all cash settled awards outstanding at 1 March 2005

(a) The Yell Group Limited Plans

in March 2002, the Group Introduced two stock option plans 1n the UK, the Yell Group Limited Employee Plan
and the Yell Group Limited Senior Manager Incentive Plan The plans were set up to provide employees with
option rewards that would become exercisable after an exit event (e g sale or quotation) The option Iife under
these plans 1s 10 years from the date of grant On a change of control, options can be exercised for up to three
months following the Change of Control, exchanged for an equivalent optton in the acquinng company, or cash-
cancelled

{b) Appointment Share Options

In accordance with the agreed terms of thewr appointment, certain sentor executives were granted share options
over ordinary shares, each with an exercise price per share equal to market value on the date of grant The
options will be exerciseable after three years subject to the achievement of an objective performance target
Options will lapse in th event of summary dismissal or (unless the Board permits otherwise) resignation Options
become exerciseable on Change of Control subject to satisfaction of the performance target

(c) The Yell Group plc Sharesave Plan

In July 2003, the Group introduced the Yell Group plc Sharesave Plan Eligible employees who wish to
participate must enter into a savings contract for a period of three or five years under which they will contribute
payments of between £5 and £250 per month, and a bonus 15 added at the end of three, five or seven years In
conjunction with the savings contract, an eltigible employee 1s granted an option te subscribe for ordinary shares
of Yell Group pic out of the repayment made under that contract at the end of three, five or seven years The
exercise price of any option will not be manifestly less than 80% of the market value of the ordinary shares at the
date of the grant The Sharesave plan I1s approved by HM Revenue and Customs On Change of Control,
options become exerciseable to the extent of savings accrued, for up te six months from Change of Control or
can be exchanged for an equivalent option in the acquiring company

{(d) The Yell Group plc Share Incentive Plan

The Yell Group pic Share Incentive Plan was established tn July 2003 and permits free, partnership, matching
and dividend shares to be awarded to eligible employees On Change of Control, participants are entitled to
direct the Trustee in respect of the offer

(e) The Yell Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme

The Yell Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme was established in July 2003, and contamns an unapproved
section and a section approved by HM Revenue and Customs The price per ordinary share at which options will
be exercised will be not less than the market value of the ordinary shares at the date of grant Options will
normally be granted within a period of 42 days commencing on the day after the date on which the Group
releases its quarterly, half yearly or final results for any financial period In most crcumstances an abjective
performance condition must be satisfied before an option can be exercised MNormally options may only be
exercised three years after their inittal date of grant The option Iffe under this plan i1s ten years from the date of
grant On Change of Control options can be exerciseable for up to six months from Change of Control, subject to
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achievement of performance conditions or can be exchanged for an equivalent option in the acquinng company
(f) The Capital Accumulation Plan

The Yell Group plc capital Accumulation Plan (the CAP) was established in February 2004 It allows the
Company to make awards of ordinary shares, which vest three years from the date of grant, to employees
There are no performance criteria attached to the vesting of these shares, which are awarded to employees
whom the Company wishes to retain as key talent within the organisation Awards are satisfied by purchasing
existing shares on the open market rather than by 1ssue of new shares on Change of Control, awards vest in full

(g) The Long-term Incentive Plan

The Yel! Group plc Long-term Incentive Plan (the LTIP) was established in July 2003 and i1s not intended to be
approved by HM Revenue and Customs The Board has sole discretion which executives are granted awards
under the LTIP Awards are granted in the form of performance shares and in most circumstances an objective
performance condition must be satisfied before an award vests Normally awards may only vest for three years
after therr imital date of grant On Change of Control, options become exerciseable and performance condition
requirements fall away but pro-rating for tme applies Options may be exercised for such reasonable period as
the Trustee may determine

{h) Deferred Bonus Plan

The Yell Group plc Deferred Bonus Plan (the DBP} was established in November 2004 For any bonus awarded
to executive directors a proportion of annual bonuses 1s (other than in exceptional circumstances) subject to
deferral into shares for a period of three years The award of these shares 1s made under the DBP On Change
of Control, nil cost options become exercisable for up to six menths from Change of Control

Options under share schemes

Options granted, exercised and lapsed under the savings related schemes and other share option schemes
during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 and options exercisable at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were as
follows

Savings  Other share Weighted

related option Exercise pnce average

schemes schemes Total range exercise pnce

Outstanding at 31 March 2011 6,581,148 11,323,097 17,904,245 0 0-407p 48p
Adjustment following open offer (2,348,443) (4,040,579) (6,389,022) 0 0-407p 48p
Granted 9,126,087 5,450,956 14,577,043 0 0-40p 4p
Exercised (835) (589,762) (590,597) 0 4-67p Op
Forfeited and expired (4,850,343) (2,093,744) (6,944,087) 0 0-407p 30p
Outstanding at 31 March 2011 8,507,614 10,049,968 18,557,582 0 0-407p 25p
Granted 21,306,190 49,955,595 71,261,786 0.0-7 4p 2p
Exercised {398) (35,212) (35,610) 0.4-12 5p Op
Forfeited and expired (7,708,273) (4,672,346) (12,380,619} 0.0-407p 31p
Qutstanding at 31 March 2012 22,105,133 55,208,005 77,403,138 0.0-407p 51p
Exercisable at 31 March 2011 481,882 1,272,863 1,754,745 0 0-407p 92p
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 159,602 2,413,793 2,573,395 0.0-407p 57p
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The werghted average far value of the 63,135,674 options granted in the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 ~
14,577,043 options) was 2 pence per option (2011 - 4 pence per option)

The following table summarises information about stock options outstanding at 31 March 2012

Weighted
average
Market pnce remaining
Exercise pnce on date of Number contractual Number
(pence) grant (pence) outstanding Iife (years) exercisable
0 40 898,300 8 136,256
0 7 6,511,519 9 -
0 5 30,523,255 10 -
04 19-285 18,095 1 18,095
34 34 1,306,228 10 64,183
44 48 19,847,137 3 -
4768 4768 1,000,000 10 -
51 51 1,000,000 10 -
56 56 4,000,000 10 -
57 57 3,500,000 10 -
7-86 786 478,132 9 -
74 74 500,000 10 -
77 77 1,275,017 9 -
12 15 1,723,358 4 122,426
12-12 4 12124 1,593,772 8 -
32 64 385,986 3 12,792
36 as 48,454 7 48,454
40 40 498,428 8 -
64 67 2,133,306 7 2,133,308
84 72 141,871 3 22,538
261 360 262 - -
284 296 13,501 2 13,501
341 418 1,145 2 -
349 483 1,965 1 1,716
407 530 3,408 1 128
77,403,139 2,573,395
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26.Auditors' remuneration

The following fees were paid or are payable to the Company's auditors for the years ended 31 March 2012 and
2011 respectively

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2012 201
£'000 £000
Audit services 125 125
Non-audit services:
- Fees payable for the audit of group undertakings pursuant to
legislation 379 349
- Services relating to taxation 256 297
- All other services 101 44
Total auditors’ remuneration 861 815

27.Controlling entity

At 31 March 2012 the Company was a wholly owned subsidiary of Yell Holdings 2 Limited The ultmate holding
company and controlling party 1s hibu plc (formerly Yell Group plc)

The Company 1s included in the consolidated financial statements of Yell Group plc, whose financial statements
are publicly avaltable Copies of Yell Group plc's consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the
Company Secretary, One Reading Central, Forbury Road, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 3YL

28.Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events
29 Liquidity

The Company belteves that the financial arrangements with other group undertakings are sufficient to ensure it
can meet any obligations to make debt repayments In the coming year These financial arrangements are with
other group undertakings all controlled by the same ulimate parent company and as such the Company has no
reason to establish any allowance for bad debts for amounts receivable

Cash 1s held in current and deposit accounts with *‘AA’ rated banks

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk The Company manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the hght of changes in economic conditions and the nsk characteristics
of the underlying assets
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